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Lutheran Cemetery
Victoria Street, Doncaster.

Although only remnants remain of the old Waldau Lutheran Cemetery at Doncaster, it is
important as one of a number of Lutheran cemeteries opened in German settlements
throughout Victoria during the 1850s. Other more intact 1850s Lutheran cemeteries in
Victoria are at Thomastown( associated with the Westgarthtown German settlement) and
at Harkaway near Berwick®”? Both are still in use as cemeteries.

The Waldau Cemetery is also of interest as one of a small number of private cemeteries
in Victoria. Many private cemeteries were associated with pastoral properties®”

The Lutheran Cemetery at Doncaster was opened in 1859 on land donated by Friedrich
Straube, owner of a nearby property.394
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German Lane(now GeorgeStreet) , which ran between Victoria Street and Blackburn
Road, became the location of the Waldau German settlement.**> Many early German
settlers and their families were among the 125 people buried in the Waldau Cemetery
before it closed in 1888. Carl Aumann, whose home was used for early Lutheran services
at Doncaster, was buried alongside Henry Finger. Henry’s barn, later moved to the
cemetery site, is now part of the present Schramms Cottage Musuem Complex.396

Other early graves in the Waldau Cemetery included those of Karl Friedrich Hanke and
August Lenkerstorff (builder of the first 1858 Waldau Church) and his one year old son
buried there in 1883. The daughter of Kate and Max Schramm was buried there; Anna
Maria Thiele(sister of Pastor Goethe) and seven of her children; and Andreas and

Wilhelmina Zander’s children.>”’

In October 1888 burials ceased at Waldau.”® The church secretary then applied to the
Templestowe Cemetery for a Lutheran compartment to be set aside. When Waldau
closed, members of the German community held a special ceremony. They climbed the
steps of the road embankment and laid flowers on the graves of their relations.

At first, Henry Thiele looked after the old cemetery while in the 1930s John Finger cared
for the graves. However, many headstones were damaged during both world wars '
because of anti-German feeling.

There is still community interest in the old cemetery. Each Easter Day since 1971
(following the transfer of the church land to the Crown and the establishment of the
museum complex) the congregation of Doncaster’s Trinity Lutheran Church has held a
dawn service at Waldau Cemetery.**

Of local historical significance. as part of an important historic site associated with the
early Waldau German Lutheran settlement; as one of a few such cemeteries established
in Victoria; and as an example of a small number of remaining private cemeteries, and as
an important local landmark. It forms part of three historic places( church, manse and
cemetery)associated with the Doncaster German community.
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